United States

Nuclear Regulatory Commission
REGION IV
1600 E LAMAR BLVD
ARLINGTON, TX 76011-4511

EA-13-261 April 3, 2014

Jeff Spearman
Radiation Safety Officer
TechCorr USA, LLC
2300 West Reagan St.
Palestine, TX 75801

SUBJECT:  NRC INSPECTION REPORT 030-37457/2014-001 AND INVESTIGATION
REPORT 04 2012-004

Dear Mr. Spearman:

This letter refers to an investigation conducted by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission’s (NRC)
Office of Investigations (Ol) regarding your activities at a field office located in Evanston,
Wyoming, and a subsequent in-office inspection conducted by NRC inspectors in Region IV.
The purpose of the Ol investigation was to review whether willfulness was involved in apparent
violations of NRC requirements. The in-office inspection was conducted to obtain further
information regarding some of the apparent violations. The inspection consisted of telephone
discussions with you and a review of records that you provided. The Ol investigation and
inspection examined activities conducted under your license as they relate to safety and
compliance with the Commission’s rules and regulations, and with the conditions of your NRC
license. After in-office reviews of all the information collected, a final telephonic exit briefing was
conducted with you and members of your staff on March 19, 2014. The enclosed report
presents the results of this inspection (Enclosure 1). The results of the investigation are
discussed in the Factual Summary of NRC Investigation (Enclosure 2). Enclosure 2 also
contains a summary of supplemental information from the inspection report regarding the
apparent violations.

Based on the results of the Ol investigation and subsequent inspection, three apparent
violations were identified and are being considered for escalated enforcement action in
accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy. The current Enforcement Policy is included on
the NRC's Web Site at http.//www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/regulatory/enforcement/enforce-pol. html.
The apparent violations include security-related violations (details provided in the non-public
Enclosures 1 and 2) and a third violation involving failure of employees to wear personnel
monitoring equipment as required by 10 CFR 34.47(a). Based on the resulits of the Ol
investigation, the NRC is concerned that willfulness might be associated with the apparent
violation of 10 CFR 34.47(a).

“Enclosures transmitted herewith contains SUNSI. When separated from the enclosures,
this transmittal document is decontrolled.”
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Before the NRC makes its enforcement decision, we are providing you an opportunity to:

(1) request a Pre-decisional Enforcement Conference (PEC), or (2) request Alternative Dispute
Resolution (ADR). If a PEC is held, the NRC will issue a press release to announce the time
and date of the conference; however, the PEC will be closed to public observation since
security-related information and sensitive information related to an investigation may be
discussed. Please contact Mr. Michael Vasquez of my staff at 817 200-1130 within 10 days
from the date of this letter to inform us of whether you will choose a PEC or ADR. A PEC or an
ADR session should be held within 30 days of the date of this letter.

If you choose to request a PEC, the conference will afford you the opportunity to provide your
perspective on these matters and any other information that you believe the NRC should take
into consideration before making an enforcement decision. The decision to hold a predecisional
enforcement conference does not mean that the NRC has determined that a violation has
occurred or that enforcement action will be taken. This conference would be conducted to
obtain information to assist the NRC in making an enforcement decision. The topics discussed
during the conference may include: (1) information to determine whether a violation occurred,
(2) information to determine the significance of a violation, (3) information related to the
identification of a violation, and (4) information related to any corrective actions taken or planned
to be taken. In presenting your corrective actions, you should be aware that the promptness
and comprehensiveness of your actions will be considered in assessing any civil penalty for the
apparent violations. The guidance provided in the NRC Information Notice 96-28, "Suggested
Guidance Relating to Development and Implementation of Corrective Action," may be helpful.
You can find the Information Notice on the NRC website at: https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-
collections/gen-comm/info-notices/1996/in96028.html.

In lieu of a PEC, you may also request ADR with the NRC in an attempt to resolve this issue.
ADR is a general term encompassing various techniques for resolving conflicts using a third
party neutral person. The technique that the NRC has decided to employ is mediation.
Mediation is a voluntary, informal process in which a trained neutral person (the “mediator”)
works with parties to help them reach resolution. If the parties agree to use ADR, they select a
mutually agreeable neutral mediator who has no stake in the outcome and no power to make
decisions. Mediation gives parties an opportunity to discuss issues, clear up
misunderstandings, be creative, find areas of agreement, and reach a final resolution of the
issues. Additional information concerning the NRC's program can be obtained at
http://www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/regulatory/enforcement/adr.html. The Institute on Conflict
Resolution (ICR) at Cornell University has agreed to facilitate the NRC's program as a neutral
third party. Please contact ICR at 877-733-9415 within 10 days of the date of this letter if you
are interested in pursuing resolution of this issue through ADR.

In addition, please be advised that the number and characterization of apparent violations
described in the enclosed inspection report may change as a result of further NRC review. You
will be advised by separate correspondence of the results of our deliberations on this matter.

The material enclosed herein contains Security-Related Information; its disclosure to
unauthorized individuals could present a security vulnerability. Therefore, the material will not
be made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or
from the NRC’s Agencywide Documents Access and Management System (ADAMS). This
letter, unless separated from Enclosures 1 and 2, and Enclosures 1 and 2 must be protected
from unauthorized disclosure. Security-Related Information is also discussed in regulatory
Information Summary RIS-2005-031, “Control of Security-Related Sensitive Unclassified Non-
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Safeguards Information” (ML053480073), which is available on the NRC Web site at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.htmi.

If you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact Mr. Michael Vasquez of my
staff at 817 200-1130.

Sincerely,
IRA/

Anton Vegel, Director
Division of Nuclear Materials Safety

Docket No.: 030-37457
License No.: 42-29261-01

Enclosures:
(1) Inspection Report 030-37457/2014-001
(2) Factual Summary of NRC Investigation

cc w/enclosures 1 and 2:
Director, Wyoming Radiation Control Program
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